
 

 

 
 

 Neuadd y Sir 
Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 

NP15 1GA 
 

Dydd Mercher, 11 Medi 2024 
 

Hysbysiad a Gyfarfod: 
 

Pwyllgor Craffu Pobl 
 

Dydd Iau, 19eg Medi, 2024 9.30 am 
Neuadd y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga, NP15 1GA 

 

Nodwch y cynhelir rhag gyfarfod 30 munud cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod ar gyfer aelodau’r pwyllgor 
 

AGENDA 
 

Rhif yr 
Eitem 

Eitem Tudalen
nau 

 

1.   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 

 
 

2.   Datganiadau o Fuddiant. 

 
 

3.   Galw penderfyniad i mewn gan y Cabinet ar 11 Medi 2024 yng nghyswllt 
Poilisi Cludiant rhwng y Cartref a’r Ysgol 2025-26. 

 

1 - 30 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL A GANLYN: 
 
County Councillor Jan Butler, Goetre Fawr;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Christopher Edwards, St. Kingsmark;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Simon Howarth, Llanelly Hill;, Independent Group 
County Councillor Penny Jones, Raglan;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Maureen Powell, Pen Y Fal;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Sue Riley, Bulwark and Thornwell;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Maria  Stevens, Severn;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Jackie Strong, Caldicot Cross;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Laura Wright, Grofield;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Martyn Groucutt, Lansdown;, Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Lisa Dymock, Portskewett;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Phil Murphy, Caerwent;, Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Tony Kear, Llanbadoc & Usk;, Welsh Conservative Party 

  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

 
 
Gwybodaeth I’r Cyhoedd 

 

Mynediad i gopïau papur o agendâu ac adroddiadau  
Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n mynychu 
cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219. Dylid nodi fod yn 
rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu copi caled o'r agenda hwn i 
chi. 
 
 Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein  
Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i www.monmouthshire.gov.uk 
neu drwy ymweld â'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r 
ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatáu i gael 
eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor.  
 
Y Gymraeg Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad cyn y 
cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich anghenion. 



 

 

 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 
i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob cam o'u bywydau. 
 
Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt  
 
• Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;  
• Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud cyfraniad cadarnhaol at fynd i'r 

afael â'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;  
• Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall busnesau dyfu a datblygu;  
• Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel ynddo;  
• Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu gwerthfawrogi;   
• Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.          
 
Ein gwerthoedd 
 

 Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus 

 Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a adeiladwyd ar 
barch un at y llall. 

 Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad effeithlon 
ac effeithiol. 

 Gwaith tîm: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar ein 
cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau. 

 Caredigrwydd – Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw, gan roi 
pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym â’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob rhyngweithio. 

 



 

 

 Canllaw Cwestiynau Craffu Sir Fynwy   
Rôl y Cyn-gyfarfod   

1. Pam mae'r Pwyllgor yn craffu ar hyn? (cefndir, materion allweddol)  

2. Beth yw rôl y Pwyllgor a pha ganlyniad mae’r Aelodau am ei gyflawni?  

3. A oes digon o wybodaeth i gyflawni hyn? Os nad oes, pwy allai ddarparu hyn?     
  

- Cytuno ar y drefn holi a pha Aelodau fydd yn arwain  

- Cytuno ar gwestiynau i swyddogion a chwestiynau i Aelod y Cabinet  
 

Cwestiynau’r Cyfarfod   



 

 

Craffu ar Berfformiad  
  

1. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â'r 

blynyddoedd blaenorol?  Ydy e’n well/yn 

waeth? Pam? 

 

2. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â 

chynghorau eraill/darparwyr gwasanaethau 

eraill?  Ydy e'n well/yn waeth? Pam?  
  

3. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu â 

thargedau gosodedig?  Ydy e’n well/yn 

waeth? Pam?   
  

4. Sut cafodd targedau perfformiad eu gosod?  

Ydyn nhw'n ddigon heriol/realistig?  
  

5. Sut mae defnyddwyr gwasanaethau/y 

cyhoedd/partneriaid yn gweld perfformiad y 

gwasanaeth?  
  

6. A fu unrhyw awdid ac archwiliadau 

diweddar? Beth oedd y canfyddiadau?  
  

7. Sut mae'r gwasanaeth yn cyfrannu at 

wireddu amcanion corfforaethol?    
  

8. A yw gwelliant/dirywiad mewn perfformiad 

yn gysylltiedig i gynnydd/ostyngiad mewn 

adnodd?  

Pa gapasiti sydd yna i wella?    

Craffu ar Bolisi   
  

1. Ar bwy mae’r polisi  yn effeithio ~ yn 

uniongyrchol ac yn anuniongyrchol?  Pwy 

fydd yn elwa fwyaf/leiaf?      
  

2. Beth yw barn defnyddwyr gwasanaeth 

/rhanddeiliaid? Pa ymgynghoriad gafodd ei 

gyflawni? A wnaeth y broses ymgynghori 

gydymffurfio ag Egwyddorion Gunning?   

A yw rhanddeiliaid yn credu y bydd yn 

sicrhau’r canlyniad a ddymunir?  
  

3. Beth yw barn y gymuned gyfan – safbwynt 

y ‘trethdalwr’?  
  

4. Pa ddulliau a ddefnyddiwyd i ymgynghori 

â’r rhanddeiliaid? A oedd y broses yn 

galluogi pawb â chyfran i ddweud eu 

dweud?  
  

5. Pa ymarfer ac opsiynau sydd wedi eu 

hystyried wrth ddatblygu/adolygu'r polisi 

hwn? Pa dystiolaeth sydd i hysbysu beth 

sy'n gweithio? A yw'r polisi yn ymwneud â 

maes lle mae diffyg ymchwil cyhoeddedig 

neu dystiolaeth arall?  
  

6. A yw'r polisi'n ymwneud â maes lle ceir 

anghydraddoldebau hysbys?  
  

7. A yw’r polisi hwn yn cyd-fynd â'n 

hamcanion corfforaethol, fel y'u diffinnir yn 

ein cynllun corfforaethol? A yw'n cadw at 

ein Safonau Iaith Gymraeg?  
  

8. A gafodd yr holl ddatblygu cynaliadwy, y 

goblygiadau cydraddoldeb a diogelu 

perthnasol eu hystyried?  
 



 

 

  Er enghraifft, beth yw'r gweithdrefnau sydd 

angen bod ar waith i amddiffyn plant?  
  

9. Faint fydd y gost hon i'w gweithredu a pha 

ffynhonnell ariannu sydd wedi'i nodi?  
  

10. Sut fydd perfformiad y polisi yn cael ei 

weithredu a’r effaith yn cael ei gwerthuso?  

Cwestiynau Cyffredinol:  

Grymuso Cymunedau  

• Sut ydym ni'n cynnwys cymunedau lleol a'u grymuso i ddylunio a darparu gwasanaethau i 

gyd-fynd ag angen lleol?  

• A ydym ni’n cael trafodaethau rheolaidd gyda chymunedau am flaenoriaethau'r 

gwasanaeth a pha lefel o wasanaeth y gall y cyngor fforddio ei ddarparu yn y dyfodol?  

• A yw’r gwasanaeth yn gweithio gyda dinasyddion i egluro rôl gwahanol bartneriaid wrth 

ddarparu gwasanaeth a rheoli disgwyliadau?   

• A oes fframwaith a phroses gymesur ar waith ar gyfer asesu perfformiad ar y cyd, gan 

gynnwys o safbwynt dinesydd, ac a oes gennych chi drefniadau atebolrwydd i gefnogi 

hyn?   

• A oes Asesiad Effaith Cydraddoldeb wedi’i gynnal? Os felly a all yr Arweinydd a’r Cabinet 

/Uwch Swyddogion roi copïau i’r Aelodau ac eglurhad manwl o’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar 

Gydraddoldeb (EQIA) a gynhaliwyd mewn perthynas â’r cynigion hyn?   

• A all yr Arweinydd a’r Cabinet/Uwch Swyddogion sicrhau aelodau bod y cynigion hyn yn 

cydymffurfio â deddfwriaeth Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol? A yw'r cynigion yn 

cydymffurfio â Chynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol yr Awdurdod Lleol?  
  

Galwadau’r Gwasanaeth   

• Sut fydd newid polisi a deddfwriaeth yn effeithio ar y ffordd mae'r cyngor yn gweithredu?  

• A ydym ni wedi ystyried demograffeg ein cyngor a sut bydd hyn yn effeithio ar ddarparu 

gwasanaethau a chyllid yn y dyfodol?  

• A ydych chi wedi adnabod ac ystyried y tueddiadau tymor hir a allai effeithio ar eich maes  

gwasanaeth, pa effaith allai'r tueddiadau hyn ei chael ar eich gwasanaeth/allai eich 

gwasanaeth ei gael ar y tueddiadau hyn, a beth sy'n cael ei wneud mewn ymateb?  
  

Cynllunio Ariannol   

• A oes gennym ni gynlluniau ariannol canolig a hirdymor cadarn yn eu lle?   

• A ydym ni’n cysylltu cyllidebau â chynlluniau a chanlyniadau ac adrodd yn effeithiol ar y 

rhain?  
  

Gwneud arbedion a chynhyrchu incwm  

• A oes gennym ni’r strwythurau cywir ar waith i sicrhau bod ein dulliau effeithlonrwydd, 

gwelliant a thrawsnewid yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd i sicrhau'r arbedion mwyaf posibl?  



 

 

• Sut ydym ni'n gwneud y mwyaf o incwm? A ydym ni wedi cymharu polisïau eraill y cyngor 

i sicrhau'r incwm mwyaf posibl ac wedi ystyried yn llawn y goblygiadau ar ddefnyddwyr 

gwasanaeth?     

• A oes gennym ni gynllun gweithlu sy'n ystyried capasiti, costau, a sgiliau'r gweithlu 

gwirioneddol yn erbyn y gweithlu a ddymunir?   
  

Cwestiynau i’w gofyn o fewn blwyddyn i’r penderfyniad:   

• A gafodd canlyniadau arfaethedig y cynnig eu cyflawni neu a oedd canlyniadau eraill?     

• A oedd yr effeithiau wedi'u cyfyngu i'r grŵp yr oeddech chi ar y dechrau yn meddwl 

fyddai wedi cael ei effeithio h.y. pobl hŷn, neu a gafodd eraill eu heffeithio e.e. pobl ag 

anableddau, rhieni â phlant ifanc?  

• A yw'r penderfyniad yn dal i fod y penderfyniad cywir neu a oes angen gwneud 

addasiadau?  



 

 

Cwestiynau i'r Pwyllgor ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod …  

A oes gennym ni’r wybodaeth angenrheidiol i ffurfio casgliadau/i wneud argymhellion i'r 

pwyllgor gwaith, cyngor, partneriaid eraill?  Os nad oes, a oes angen i ni:  

(i) Ymchwilio i’r mater yn fwy manwl?  

(ii) Gael rhagor o wybodaeth gan dystion eraill - Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol, arbenigwr 

annibynnol, aelodau o’r gymuned, defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, cyrff rheoleiddio… 

Cytuno ar gamau pellach sydd i'w cymryd o fewn amserlen/adroddiad monitro yn y dyfodol. 
  

 



 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

CALL-IN MECHANISM 

 
Call-in 

(a) When a decision is made by the executive, an individual member of 
the executive or a committee of the executive or an area committee or 
under joint arrangements, the decision shall be published, including 
where possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main 
offices of the Council normally within two days of being made. All 
members will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within 
the same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the 
decision. 

 

(b) That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify 
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on 
the expiry of five clear working days after the publication of the decision, 
unless a select committee objects to it and calls it in. 

 

(c) During that period, the proper officer shall call-in a decision for 
scrutiny by the committee if so requested by the chairman or any three 
non-executive members and shall then notify the decision-taker of the 
call-in. He/she shall call a meeting of the committee on such date as 
he/she may determine, where possible after consultation with the 
chairman of the committee, and in any case within fifteen working days 
of the publication of the decision. 

 

(d) If, having considered the decision, the select committee is still 
concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making 
person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its 
concerns or refer the matter to full Council. If referred to the decision 
maker they shall then reconsider, amending the decision or not, before 
adopting a final decision. 

 

(e) If following an objection to the decision, the select committee does 
not meet in the period set out above, or does meet but does not refer the 
matter back to the decision making person or body, the decision shall 
take effect on the date of the select meeting, or the expiry fifteen 
working days, from the publication of the decision, whichever is the 
earlier. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



(f) If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not 
object to a decision which has been made, then no further action is 
necessary and the decision will be effective in accordance with the 
provision below. However, if the Council does object, the Council will 
refer any decision to which it objects back to the decision making person 
or body, together with the Council’s views on the decision. That decision 
making body or person shall choose whether to amend the decision or 
not before reaching a final decision and implementing it. Where the 
decision was taken by the executive as a whole or a committee of it, a 
meeting will be convened to reconsider within ten clear working days of 
the Council request. Where the decision was made by an individual, the 
individual will reconsider within ten clear working days of the Council 
request. 

 

(g) If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the 
decision back to the decision making body or person, the decision will 
become effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the 
period in which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is 
the earlier. 

 

EXCEPTIONS 

(h) In order to ensure that call-in is not abused, nor causes unreasonable 
delay, certain limitations are to be placed on its use. These are: 

i) only decisions involving expenditure or reductions in service 
over a value of £10,000 may be called in; 

ii) three members of the council are needed for a decision to be 
called in; 

 

CALL-IN AND URGENCY 

(i) The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision 
being taken by the executive is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any 
delay likely to be caused by the call in process would seriously prejudice 
the Council’s or the public’s interests. The record of the decision, and 
notice by which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the 
decision making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and 
therefore not subject to call-in. The Head of Paid Service or his/her 
nominee must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all 
the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. 
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next 
available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency. 

 

(j) The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be 
monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for 
review if necessary. 

Page 2



 
 
 

 
CALL IN REQUEST 

1. SUBJECT: Home to School Transport 

2. DATE OF CABINET MEETING: 11/09/2024 

3. CABINET DECISION: Proposed Home to School Transport Policy 25-26 

4. REASON(S) FOR CALL- IN: 

Insufficient public consultation, which took place over the school holidays preventing 

many families from expressing their views. 

5. DATE RECEIVED: 12/09/2024 

6. MEMBERS CALLING-IN: 

(The Chairman of a Select Committee or any three non-executive members) 

Name Ward 

 
 

 

 
 

Please identify which Select Committee should hear the call in based on the 
reasons for the call in request 

People Scrutiny 

 

Lisa Dymock (Portskewett), Phil Murphy (Caerwent) and Tony Kear (Llanbadoc and Usk) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire Scrutiny 

1 
 

 

Call-in Process 

 

Scrutiny committees can scrutinise decisions that have been made by the Cabinet or 

an Executive Member before the decisions take effect.  When a decision has been 

published, members who wish to ‘call-in’ the decision have 5 working days in which 

to request a ‘call-in’, otherwise the decision is considered to have taken effect.  

 

At least three members must sign a ‘call-in’ and they must give clear reasons as to 

why they are ‘calling-in’ the decision.  

 

The ‘Calling-in of a decision’ has its own process, in line with the “Scrutiny and 

Executive Protocol” and the council’s Constitution.  

 

Attending Call-in Meetings 

 

The following arrangements apply to Call-in meetings:   

 

• A request for a decision to be ‘called-in’ requires a meeting of the relevant 

scrutiny committee to be convened within 15 clear working days of the decision 

to call it in - only in exceptional circumstances will the Chair of the Scrutiny 

Committee consider extending this time limit.   

• The Committee will invite the relevant Cabinet Member and/or Officer i.e. (the 

decision-taker) and any other Officers the Committee considers appropriate to 

the meeting. 

• The Committee will endeavour to offer appropriate notice to witnesses required 

to attend and will as far as possible ensure the scheduling of the Call-in meeting 

facilitates their attendance.    

• In inviting Officers to attend, the relevant Chief Officer responsible will be 

consulted as a matter of courtesy.  

• Scrutiny Committees welcome the views of additional Officers, however, to 

ensure consistency, transparency and openness, such Officers should indicate 

in advance of the agenda despatch (i.e. 3 working days prior to the meeting) 

that they wish to attend, with reasons for their attendance.   

• Additional Officers should advise the Scrutiny Team that they wish to attend, 

which will be discussed and agreed with the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee.  

It is the discretion of the Committee to allow such Officers to take part in the 

meeting.   

 

The ‘Call-in’ Process at the Scrutiny Committee Meeting 

 

• The Call-in procedure allows for the Members who requested the decision be 

called-in to speak first, outlining their reasons for calling in the decision.   

Page 5



Monmouthshire Scrutiny 

2 
 

• The Cabinet Member will then be invited to respond, following which officers 

may respond.   

• The Chair will then ask Scrutiny Committee Members to comment if they wish 

to do so.   

• There will then be an opportunity for any other elected Members to ask their 

questions prior to the Committee considering their way forward. Only 

Members of the Committee will be able to vote on the course of action 

proposed.   

• Scrutiny Committees do not make decisions, but having followed the Council’s 

Call-in procedure, they can agree to do one of three things: 

 

1) Accept the Cabinet’s decision.  

2) Refer the matter back to Cabinet for re-consideration (with reasons). 

3) Refer the matter to Council for consideration. 

 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE: 

 

1.1 The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 sets out the legal responsibilities for the provision 

of school transport. Within the legislation they place a duty on local authorities to review 

their transport policy on an annual basis. The policy needs to be confirmed by the 1st October 

and will apply from the start of the proceeding academic year. This ensures that parents and 

guardians applying for school places are aware of their eligibility for school transport before 

they submit their applications. 

 

1.2 Public consultation on proposed changes to the 25-26 home to school  transport policy 

commenced on Friday 12th July and will conclude on the 23rd August. The feedback from 

the consultation will be presented to Cabinet on 11th  September to determine if any of the 

options will be adopted for the 25-26 policy. The purpose of this report is to provide People 

Scrutiny Committee with an opportunity to consider the consultation options so that their 

views can be considered by Cabinet. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

2.1 That Scrutiny Committee consider the consultation options and provide their feedback for 

consideration by Cabinet.  

 

 

3. KEY ISSUES: 

 

3.1 The legal responsibilities placed on Local Authorities to provide free home to school 

transport are prescribed in the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008. Welsh Government 

have recently concluded a review of the obligations set out in the Measure and published 

their findings and recommendations in March of this year. Their review concluded 

that  “given the fundamental reform that Welsh Government are planning for the structure 

of the bus industry, and with the Welsh Government facing significant challenges around 

budget pressures there should be no immediate amendment to the legislation which 

underpins Learner Travel in Wales”. 

 

SUBJECT:  Home to School Transport Policy 2025-26 

MEETING:  People Scrutiny Committee 

DATE:  23rd July 2024 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

 

Page 7

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/contents


  

 

3.2 The Learner Travel Measure places the following legal duties on Local Authorities to: 

 Assess the travel needs of learners in their authority area. 

 Provide free home to school transport for learners of compulsory school age attending 

primary school who live 2 miles or more from their nearest suitable school. 

 Provide free home to school transport for learners of compulsory school age attending 

secondary school who live 3 miles or further from their nearest suitable school. 

 Assess and meet the needs of ‘looked after’ children in their authority area. 

 Promote access to Welsh medium education. 

 Promote sustainable modes of transport. 

 Where learners are not entitled to free transport, local authorities have the power to 

provide transport on a discretionary basis. 

 

3.3 The Measure also places a duty on all local authorities to undertake an annual review of 

the transport policy which sets out how the statutory responsibilities and any discretionary 

policies that are being applied. The transport policy should be agreed prior to the 1st 

October for application in the proceeding academic year. 

 

3.4 Currently Monmouthshire exceeds the statutory requirements and provides the following 

discretionary transport: 

 Learners of compulsory school age attending a maintained primary school who live 1.5 

miles or more from their nearest suitable or catchment school. 

 Learners of compulsory school age attending a maintained secondary school who live 

2 miles or more from their nearest suitable or catchment school. 

 Learners aged 4 attending a maintained primary school who live 1.5 miles or more 

from their nearest suitable or catchment school 

 Learners attending their nearest or catchment Welsh medium school who meet the 

distance criteria or 1.5 miles for primary and 2 miles for secondary 

  Learners attending their nearest or catchment faith school who meet the meet the 

distance criteria of 1.5 miles for primary and 2 miles for secondary. 

 

3.5 Currently the Council provides home to school transport for 2,828 learners travelling to 54 

different educational establishments. The cost of this provision has increased year on 

year and the average cost per learner equates to £2,894. To ensure that we continue to 

mitigate escalating costs we undertake on-going route reviews to ensure that we 

maximise vehicle occupancy levels, operate our own transport provision and undertake 

competitive tender processes for externalised contracts. The in-house service has 

continued to increase the number of routes operated due to the lack of bids or where the 

cost of in-house provision is lower than that offered by the external market. 

 

3.6 Following a review of the current transport policy a consultation exercise has commenced 

which considers three options which if adopted would align our provision with our statutory 

responsibilities and provide additional opportunities for the application of personal 

transport budgets.  

Page 8



3.7 Option 1. This proposes that the distance eligibility criteria for primary aged learners 

would revert to the statutory distance of two miles. An assessment of those currently 

receiving transport has determined that if this policy were to be adopted it would impact 70 

mainstream learners. 53 faith learners and 10 Welsh medium learners all of which would 

no longer be eligible to receive transport as they live between 1.5 and 1.9 miles of their 

school. The potential financial saving if this option were to be adopted is circa £300k per 

annum. Appendix 1 outlines the potential impact on learners at a school level. 

3.8 Option 2. This proposes that the distance eligibility criteria for secondary learners would 

revert to the statutory distance of three miles. If this option were to be adopted it would 

impact 167 mainstream learners who live between 2 and 2.9 miles from their school. 

There would be no impact to Welsh medium or faith learners as they travel out of County 

to attend their nearest suitable school. The potential financial saving is circa £365k per 

annum. Appendix 1 outlines the potential impact on learners at a school level. 

  

3.9  An assessment of the potential environmental impacts of adopting option 1 and option 2 

has been undertaken, the details of which are below. 

Option  Emissions if all learners losing 

transport travelled to school by 

car 

Emissions for journeys between 

1.75 and 2 miles for primary and 

2.5 and 3 miles for secondary 

learners 

Option 1 33.06 tonnes 11.11 tonnes 

Option 2 60.75 tonnes 16.16 tonnes 

 

The above table provides the potential gross emissions which may arise if all learners 

impacted by the options choose to travel to school by private car. The reduction in home to 

school transport emissions which would arise due to the reduced number of contracts 

would mitigate these emissions and we will continue to support active travel opportunities. 

We have recently undertaken a tender exercise for socially necessary public bus services 

and used the opportunity to improve opportunities for secondary learners to access public 

buses to travel to and from school through timetable changes. We will continue to work 

with operators and evaluate feedback to identify any further opportunities to improve this 

provision to reduce the need for private car journeys. 

 

3.10 Option 3 proposes that where the Council is unable to secure an affordable external 

operator, or if it is the best financial option, parents or guardians will be offered a personal 

transport budget (PTB) to transport their children to and from school. The Council currently 

offers PTBs in limited circumstances and this proposal seeks to broaden their use. The 

proposal does not seek to make PTB’s mandatory in the circumstances outlined in the 

option and should parents / guardians decline the offer, the Council will provide transport. 

Where an offer of a PTB is accepted, the Council will pay the parent / guardian 45p per 

mile and £10/hour for the return journey, to be assessed by the Commissioning team.  

 

3.11 Consultation on the three options commenced on the 12th July, emails were sent to 

existing users, schools, operators and stakeholders and they were signposted to the 

Page 9



webpage, consultation document and on-line survey. At the time that the report was 

prepared we had received 155 survey responses. Hard copies of the surveys are also 

provided where requested. Following the conclusion of the consultation on 23rd August the 

feedback will be compiled and considered by Cabinet on 11th September.  

 

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES SOCIAL 

JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING): 

Please see attached assessment. 

 

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL 

 

5.1 All of the current discretionary transport arrangements were reviewed and a number of 

options considered. Options 1 and 2 have been taken forward for consultation as the 

proposals, if adopted, would align the Councils home to school transport policy with our 

statutory responsibilities. Option 3 would broaden the use of PTBs with the consent of 

parents or guardians.   

 

6. REASONS: 

 

6.1 The Councils current home to school policy currently exceeds its statutory responsibilities 

and last year cost £7,704,231 to deliver. The challenging financial circumstances facing 

the Local Authority have necessitated a review of its service models, particularly where we 

are exceeding our statutory responsibilities.  

 

6.2  Welsh Government have concluded that due to financial constraints and the forthcoming 

bus reform bill they are not proposing any changes to the existing statutory requirements. 

A review of the home to school transport policies has indicated that Monmouthshire is one 

of the few Local Authorities that has not adopted statutory distances, in particular 18 Local 

Authorities have adopted 2 miles for primary aged learners and 19 for secondary aged 

learners.  

 

5.3 Where learners do not have access to an available walking route, the Council will 

continue to provide home to school transport. Discretionary transport will also be provided 

where learners have evidenced medical conditions which prevent them from being able to 

walk to school. 

 

5.4 It is recognised that the proposals will cause concern for those parents whose eligibility for 

free home to school transport will be lost, should option 1 or 2 be implemented. The 

Council has a responsibility to promote sustainable travel and we will continue to work with 

schools to improve opportunities for active travel and the implementation of school streets 

and with bus operators to maximise opportunities for learners to access public transport. 

 

 

6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: 

 

7.1 The cost of home to school travel in 2023-24 was £7,704,231 which was an overspend of 

£729,912 against the allocated budget. The budget for 24-25 is £7,779,910 and forecasts 

have already identified a potential budget pressure. 
Page 10



 

7.2 If option 1 were adopted we would expect to realise savings in the region of £300k and 

option 2 would generate savings of circa £365k.  

 

7. CONSULTEES: 

 

Public consultation  

 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Learner travel in Wales analysis and evaluation: recommendations report December 2023 

[HTML] | GOV.WALES 

 

Home to School Transport Consultation - Monmouthshire 

 

9. AUTHOR: 

Debra Hill-Howells 

Head of Decarbonisation, Transport & Support Services 

 

10. CONTACT DETAILS: 

 

 Tel: 01633 644281 

 E-mail: debrahill-howells@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 11

https://www.gov.wales/learner-travel-wales-analysis-and-evaluation-recommendations-report-december-2023-html
https://www.gov.wales/learner-travel-wales-analysis-and-evaluation-recommendations-report-december-2023-html
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/home-to-school-transport-consultation-2/


Appendix 1 – Impact of Options 1 and 2 at a School Level 

 

 

School Total 

No below 

statutory 

limit Total 

No below 

statutory 

limit 

Archbishop Rowan Williams 53           29               

Brynmawr Foundation School 4           3                  

Caldicot 387      89               

Cross Ash Primary 89           2                 

Chepstow Comprehensive 187      44               

Caerleon Comprehensive 30        7                  

Crickhowell High School 116      3                  

The Dell 49           24               

Deri View Primary 12           5                 

Castle Park Primary 1             -             

Dewstow Primary 2             1                 

Durand Primary 2             -             

Goytre Fawr Primary 22           2                 

Gilwern Primary 38           9                 

King Henry VIII 298      9                  

Llanvihangel Crucorney 9             2                 

Llanfoist Fawr 13           7                 

Llandogo Primary 22           -             

Llantillio Pertholey Primary 10           3                 

Magor Church in Wales 6             3                 

Monmouth Comprehensive 550      12               

Our Lady St Michaels 11           1                 

Overmonnow Primary School 8             1                 

Pembroke Primary School 1             1                 

Rogiet Primary 51           1                 

Raglan Primary 71           3                 

Shirenewton Primary 64           8                 

St Albans RC High 54        -              

St Briavels Parochial CofE Primary 2             -             

St Josephs RC High School 43        -              

St Marys RC Primary 8             2                 

Trellech Primary School 82           5                 

Undy Primary School 7             -             

Usk Primary School 88           14               

West Monmouth School 5           -              

Ysgol Gyfun Gwynllyw 90        -              

Ysgol Gyfun Gwent IsCoed 54        -              

Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni 86           6                 

Ysgol Gymraeg Y Ffin 29           4                 

Primary Secondary

Page 12



 

 
     
 

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation 
 
Debra Hill-Howells 
 
Phone no: 0775 851405 
E-mail:       debrahill-howells@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

The report seeks consent to consult on the Draft Transport Policy for 25-26. 

The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 requires that policies are reviewed 

annually and the agreed policy is published by the 1st October for application in 

the following academic year. There are 3 options being consulted upon which 

impact on the eligibility criteria for free home to school transport. 

Name of Service area 

Decarbonisation, Transport & Support Services 

Date   16th July 2024 

(11th July 2022, revision 2: Sept 2022, revision 3: April 23, revision 4: 

20th July 2023, revision 5: 24th August 2023 ) 

 

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Integrated Impact Assessment document 
(incorporating Equalities, Future Generations, Welsh Language and 

Socio-Economic Duty) 
 

P
age 13



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Age The proposal details the Transport Policy for 

learners attending state funded education 

settings between the age of 4 and 16. It is 

proposed that discretionary free transport for 4-

year-olds and those attending faith and Welsh 

medium education will continue subject to them 

meeting the eligibility criteria. 

The options propose that the distance 
eligibility criteria are increased to 2 miles for 
primary learners and 3 miles for secondary 
learners, aligning with the Councils statutory 
responsibilities. This will negatively impact 
on learners who currently have access to 
transport at 1.5 miles for primary and 2 
miles for secondary. It has been assessed 
that this will impact 300 existing users of 
transport. 
 

Bus timetables for socially necessary 
services have been improved to enable 
more secondary aged learners to utilise 
public transport to travel to and from 
school. We will continue to work with 
operators and review feedback to 
identify further opportunities for 
improvement. In addition, we will 
continue to support schools to promote 
active travel and where possible 
implement school streets. 

P
age 14



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Disability The existing policy provides criteria for the 

provision of transport for learners with ALN 

based on their assessed needs.  

All learners attending primary and secondary 
settings are able to apply for discretionary 
transport if they have a medical condition or 
disability which prevents them from walking to 
school. 
 
If a primary aged learner’s parents have a 

medical condition which prevents them from 

supporting their child walking to school, they can 

apply for discretionary transport. No changes are 

proposed to this provision. 

 

Option 3 proposes the use of personal transport 

budgets for learners where we have been unable 

to secure an operator or where a PTB would be 

the most effective financial option. Parents will 

not be obligated to accept a PTB, but for those 

who are able to or would transport their own 

children they will receive financial support to do 

so. 

The proposed changes to the distance 
eligibility criteria will be mitigated by the 
discretionary provision described. 
 

The discretionary application process 
has not been changed to ensure that 
learners with a medically assessed 
condition which impacts their ability to 
walk to school can access free 
transport.  
 
 

P
age 15



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Gender 

reassignment 

.The provision of free school transport is 

available to all eligible pupils regardless of their 

gender.  

Passenger assistants are not routinely 
provided on vehicles and therefore if there 
were issues of bullying or harassment action 
might be delayed until such time, we receive 
a complaint from a learner or their parent if 
they are travelling by coach. If they are on a 
smaller vehicle the driver may be more 
aware of any issues arising on the vehicle 
and be able to intervene 

Where incidents of bullying or 
harassments are alleged to occur, the 
Commissioning Team works with the 
school to undertake an investigation. If 
the allegations are proven we will work 
with the school to put any reasonable 
recommended solutions in place 
including the provision of a PA. 
Sanctions will be imposed against the 
perpetrator of proven acts of violence, 
bullying or harassment. 

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy or 

maternity 

We will provide discretionary transport to any 

learner with a proven medical condition that 

meets the eligibility criteria or due to their 

condition are unable to walk to school or access 

public transport. We will work with the learner, 

their parents, and the school to ensure that 

anyone who is pregnant and meets the criteria 

is able to safely travel on school transport. 

N/A We will work with individual learners, 
parents, and schools to ensure that 
school transport is safe for pregnant 
learners. 

P
age 16



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Race . The provision of free school transport is 

available to any learner that meets the eligibility 

criteria. 

Passenger assistants are not routinely 
provided on vehicles and therefore if there 
were issues of bullying or racial harassment 
action might be delayed until such time, we 
receive a complaint from a learner or their 
parent if they are travelling by coach. If they 
are on a smaller vehicle the driver may be 
more aware of any issues arising on the 
vehicle and be able to intervene 

Where incidents of bullying or racial 
harassments are alleged to occur, the 
Commissioning Team will work with the 
school to undertake an investigation. If 
the allegations are proven we will work 
with the school to put any reasonable 
recommended solutions in place 
including the provision of a PA. 
Sanctions will be imposed against the 
perpetrator of proven acts of violence, 
bullying or harassment due to a 
learner’s ethnicity. 

Religion or Belief .Free discretionary home to school transport is 

provided for learners attending their nearest faith 

school. 

The proposed reversion to the statutory 
distances will impact on 53 primary aged 
learners who currently access free home 
to school transport. The proposed 
changes may impact on parental 
decisions for their children’s preferred 
education medium. 

Bus timetables for socially necessary 
services have been improved to enable 
more secondary aged learners to utilise 
public transport to travel to and from 
school. We will continue to work with 
operators and review feedback to 
identify further opportunities for 
improvement. In addition, we will 
continue to support schools to promote 
active travel and where possible 
implement school streets. 

Sex The provision of free school transport is available 

to any learner that meets the eligibility criteria. 

Passenger assistants are not routinely 
provided on vehicles and therefore if there 
were issues of bullying or harassment action 
might be delayed until such time, we receive 
a complaint from a learner or their parent if 
they are travelling by coach. If they are on a 
smaller vehicle the driver may be more 
aware of any issues arising on the vehicle 
and be able to intervene 

Where incidents of bullying or 
harassments are alleged to occur, the 
Commissioning Unit will work with the 
school to undertake an investigation. If 
the allegations are proven we will work 
with the school to put any reasonable 
recommended solutions in place 
including the provision of a PA. 
Sanctions will be imposed against the 
perpetrator of proven acts of violence, 
bullying or harassment  

P
age 17



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Sexual Orientation . The provision of free school transport is 

available to any learner that meets the eligibility 

criteria. 

Passenger assistants are not routinely 
provided on vehicles and therefore if there 
were issues of bullying or harassment action 
might be delayed until such time, we receive 
a complaint from a learner or their parent if 
they are travelling by coach. If they are on a 
smaller vehicle the driver may be more 
aware of any issues arising on the vehicle 
and be able to intervene 

Where incidents of bullying or 
harassments are alleged to occur, the 
Commissioning Unit will work with the 
school to undertake an investigation. If 
the allegations are proven we will work 
with the school to put any reasonable 
recommended solutions in place 
including the provision of a PA. 
Sanctions will be imposed against the 
perpetrator of proven acts of violence, 
bullying or harassment. 
 
Equalities training will be provided as 
soon as it is available from the 
corporate training service and bespoke 
advice will be sought for individual 
cases.  
 
 

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice 

The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-

economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice. 

 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has in respect of people 

suffering socio economic 

disadvantage 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has in respect of 
people suffering socio economic 
disadvantage. 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 
better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

P
age 18



 

Socio-economic 

Duty and Social 

Justice  

The provision of free home to school transport 

ensures that all learners have equal access to 

education. The continuation of discretionary 

transport for 4-year-olds, faith and Welsh 

medium education ensures that parents can still 

access their chosen education establishment 

subject to meeting the eligibility criteria. 

Discretionary transport for evidenced medical 

conditions will continue to be available. 

Subsidised concessionary seats are made 

available where vacant seats exist.  Learners 

have the opportunity to apply for free transport to 

their nearest suitable or catchment schools if 

they are different and out of county schools will 

be considered as part of the nearest suitable 

evaluation process. 

The proposed options will reduce the 

availability of free home to school 

transport for existing and future learners. 

This may negatively impact on learners and 

their families who had applied for a specific 
school based on their ability to access free 
home to school transport. It will impact 
families who will struggle to provide 
alternative travel arrangements due to 
existing commitments or work 
requirements. 

Where parents can demonstrate that their 
primary aged pupils have medical conditions 
that prevent them from walking to school, 
discretionary transport may be awarded. 
 
The Council continues to work with bus 
operators to maximise the opportunities for 
maintaining or enhancing public bus service 
provision which will have broader benefits 
beyond learners. 
 

The Council will ensure that for Post 16 Welsh 

learners attending their nearest suitable school 

will be able to access concessionary travel. 

 

The Council will support schools to promote 

active travel and where feasible school streets.  

 

  

P
age 19



3. Policy making and the Welsh language. 

 
How does your proposal impact 
on the following aspects of the 
Council’s Welsh Language 
Standards: 

 

 Describe the positive impacts of 

this proposal 

 

 
Describe the negative impacts 
of this proposal 

 

What has been/will be done 
to mitigate any negative 
impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 
 

Policy Making  

Effects on the use of the Welsh 

language,  

Promoting Welsh language  

Treating the Welsh language no 

less favourably 

The LTM measure provides LAs with the 

ability to provide discretionary transport to 

Welsh medium schools. This policy 

proposes that all learners wishing to attend 

Welsh medium education will continue to 

have access to free transport to their 

nearest suitable Welsh medium school if 

they meet the distance eligibility criteria. 

The proposal to revert to statutory 

distances will impact on 10 existing 

Welsh medium primary learners 

who will no longer be eligible for 

free home to school transport.  

 

The proposed changes may 

negatively impact on future parental 

decisions to access Welsh medium 

education if they are unable to 

access free home to school 

transport. 

The proposal will not impact 
secondary learners due to the 
need to travel out of County to 
access Welsh medium 
secondary education. The 
proposal will impact primary aged 
Welsh Medium learners 
attending Ysgol Gymraeg y Ffeni 
and Ysgol Gymraeg Y Ffin. A 
new Welsh medium seedling 
school will be opening in 
Monmouth in September which 
will increase access to Welsh 
medium primary education and 
mitigate the need for leaners to 
travel to Abergavenny. 
 
Post 16 learners will be 
guaranteed access to 
concessionary travel to their 
nearest suitable school.  
 
 

Operational  

Recruitment & Training of 

workforce 

 

 Recruiting drivers is extremely 

challenging in the current climate 

and their driving qualifications take 

priority over their Welsh language 

skills. 

 

All colleagues have access to 
Welsh language training courses.  

P
age 20



 
 
4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together 
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.  There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not 
relevant!

 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

The provision of free school transport ensures that 

learners can access mainstream, Welsh medium, or 

faith schools. The proposals to revert to statutory 

distances will negatively impact on learners who live 

less than 2 miles from their nearest suitable or 

catchment primary school and 3 miles from their 

nearest suitable or catchment school. ALN transport 

is provided based on their individual assessments 

subject to meeting the distance eligibility criteria. 

The continued inclusion of discretionary transport 

for learners who are unable to walk to school due to 

evidenced medical reasons will prevent learners 

being disadvantaged due to their medical 

circumstances. 

School transport requires a local supply chain to 

operate home to school contracts. An in-house 

passenger transport service has been created to 

Staff can only access Welsh 

language training courses where 

they do not impact on school 

transport duties. 

Service delivery.  

Use of Welsh language in service 

delivery  

Promoting use of the language 

Parents can apply for school transport 

through the medium of Welsh. All 

communications can be undertaken 

through the Welsh Language. 

The Council will continue to provide 

discretionary transport to Welsh medium 

schools subject to learners meeting the 

eligibility criteria. 

Drivers and passenger assistants 

may not be able to converse in 

Welsh on the vehicles. 

All colleagues have access to 
Welsh language training courses 
that are provided centrally. 
 
 
 
The consultation exercise has 
invited feedback on the impact of 
the proposals on the Welsh 
language and this will be used to 
inform the final proposed drafting 
and decision making process. 

P
age 21



 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

The adoption of Welsh Government’s Transport 

hierarchy and the promotion of public bus services 

will ensure that resources are maximized for the 

benefit of all community members. 

 

respond to market failure that provides roles for 

drivers, passenger assistants and supervisory staff. 

Timetables for socially necessary public bus 

services have recently been reviewed to improve 

the opportunity for secondary learners to access 

public transport.  

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g., climate 
change) 

Free school transport reduces the number of motor 

cars that need to undertake the school run thereby 

helping to reduce the county’s carbon footprint. The 

proposals to revert to statutory distances however 

may result in additional vehicle movements if 

parents transport their children to school by private 

cars which will increase carbon emissions. 

The Commissioning Unit continues to work with the 

Transport team to maximise the opportunities to use 

public bus services, thereby reducing vehicle 

movements and the resulting carbon emissions. 

Learners can access free transport to either their 

nearest suitable or catchment schools, if they are 

different, which can reduce mileage, journey times 

and carbon emissions. Feeder status is not 

considered when assessing nearest suitable school, 

which may negatively impact some communities 

where their primary school is identified as a feeder 

school for an out of county comprehensive which is 

not their nearest suitable or catchment school.  

The Council has started its fleet transition and 

currently has 12 electric vehicles in its passenger 

transport fleet.  

Routes are continually assessed to identify 

opportunities to combine routes and reduce the 

number of vehicles. Available walking routes are 

also continually reviewed where transport has been 

provided as a route has been deemed unavailable 

and the walking distance is below the eligible 

thresholds.  

We continue to prioritise the use of public bus 

services for secondary learners. The Council 

provides free transport to either nearest suitable or 

catchment if they are different, faith and Welsh 

medium schools subject to meeting the distance 

eligibility criteria. All Monmouthshire learners have 

access to a Monmouthshire catchment school. 

P
age 22



 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 

The home to school policy adopts Welsh 

Governments transport hierarchy which prioritises 

active travel and public bus services.  

The proposal to adopt statutory distances will 

negatively impact on learners who may lose their 

eligibility to free home to school transport. This may 

result in negative mental health impacts for learners 

and create additional financial burdens for families. 

Feeder school status is not an eligibility criterion 

when assessing access to free school transport, 

which may impact on the mental health of students 

who attend a school which is different from their 

community peer group, if they wish to access free 

transport. There is no guarantee that siblings will 

have access to free transport to the same school as 

circumstances may have changed in the intervening 

period e.g., catchment reviews. This may result in 

negative mental health impacts for learners and 

create additional financial burdens for families. 

Any policy changes will be published on or before 

1st October in advance of school application 

processes so that parents are clear on their 

entitlement to free transport before applying for 

school places. 

By enabling parents to access free home to 

transport for nearest suitable or catchment if they 

are different, it provides the opportunity for parents 

to have a choice of schools and potentially reduce 

journey times if the nearest school (which could be 

out of county) is selected. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe, and well connected 

School transport provides access to learners to 

attend their nearest suitable or catchment schools 

thereby developing friendships and support 

networks. 

School transport does not consider feeder school 

status which may be different from the catchment or 

nearest suitable schools which may negatively 

impact on those learners who will not receive 

transport to their preferred school.  

Maintaining and where possible improving the 

existing public bus infrastructure will provide wider 

benefits for the community.  

We will work with schools to promote active travel 

and where feasible introduce school streets to 

reduce congestion at school sites. 

P
age 23



 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic, and environmental 
wellbeing 

The procurement of external operators is undertaken 

through a collaborative procurement system with 

neighboring authorities and contractual terms and 

conditions are aligned. We have developed or own 

in house transport provision to respond to market 

failure so that resources can be provided locally. 

MonLife continues to develop active travel 

infrastructure and we will continue to explore 

opportunities to maintain or enhance the public bus 

network within Monmouthshire 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage, and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art, and 
recreation 

Free home to school transport is provided for 

statutory aged learners who wish to attend their 

nearest suitable or catchment Welsh medium 

school, subject to meeting the eligibility criteria.  

 

All Welsh medium Post 16 learners attending their 

nearest suitable or catchment school will have 

access to concessionary travel. 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

Free home to school transport is accessible to all learners 

who meet the eligibility criteria. In addition, discretionary 

travel is proposed for specific sets of learners to ensure 

that they can safely access their nearest suitable or 

catchment schools. The options if adopted will negatively 

impact on learners who live below the statutory distances 

of 2 and 3 miles as they will lose their entitlement to free 

home to school transport.  

Improvements to public bus timetables and 

networks will enable learners who do not meet the 

eligibility criteria to access public transport. 

Continued improvements to the active travel network 

will enable learners to walk or cycle to school. 

 

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritized the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

P
age 24



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing short 

term need with 

long term and 

planning for the 

future 

School transport changes on an annual basis as new 

learners start their education journey or move into the 

area and others leave the education setting. We work 

with the Access Unit to identify those learners that are 

eligible for transport and have contacted all parents of 

new school starters to advise if they are eligible for free 

transport. 

As the service requirements change annually, long term 

planning is difficult however we are seeking to mitigate 

this through the adoption of WG’s transport hierarchy, 

improvements to the walking infrastructure and public 

networks and the proposals to revert to statutory distance 

criteria. If adopted the proposals will generate circa 

£700k of revenue savings enabling the service to operate 

within allocated budgets. 

 

Routes are assessed when new learners apply for 
transport to determine if routes can be aggregated or 
vehicle size is increased.  
 
The Councils Schools & Community transport service 
continually review their operational needs in order to 
respond to contractor hand backs, lack of tenders etc. 
The transition of the fleet will help offset our carbon 
footprint and plan for future legislative requirements for 
accessible and net zero school transport vehicles. 
 
The provision of annual Transport Policy provides a 
framework for how decisions will be made. 

Working 

together with 

other partners 

to deliver 

objectives  

For school transport to be successful it needs to be 

delivered in partnership with operators, parents, schools, 

and learners as well as other Council service areas. We 

also work with neighbouring authorities to procure 

operators on a standard contract, agree annual price 

uplifts and share learning.  

The Transport team continues to work with the 

Commissioning Unit and operators to identify 

opportunities to improve the public bus network for 

learners. 

Feedback from the consultation process will be presented 
to Cabinet and will inform the final drafting of the 25-26 
Home to School Transport policy. 

P
age 25



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Involving those 

with an interest 

and seeking 

their views 

The Council is undertaking a consultation process over a 6-

week period. All parents/guardians of existing users, schools 

and operators have been contacted to make them aware of the 

consultation. A press release was issued at the start of the 

process and we will continue to issue regular social media 

updates reminding community members to respond. 

 

Feedback from the consultation process will be presented 
to Cabinet and will inform the final drafting of the 25-26 
Home to School Transport policy. 

Putting 

resources into 

preventing 

problems 

occurring or 

getting worse 

Due to ongoing issues around lack of external bids or bids 

being excessive our internal provision has expanded to fill any 

potential service gaps. Whilst the majority of contracts are still 

undertaken through external operators the internal resource 

has increasingly had to step in to cover contract hand backs or 

operator failures.  

Increased use of the public bus network to transport learners 

will improve the viability of publicly accessible services. 

When a new contract is taken on by the internal service, 
if this exceeds existing capacity, we review existing 
routes and where possible release one back for external 
tender. This ensures that contracts are available for the 
external operators and mitigates the impact of additional 
contracts on the existing workforce. If no bids are 
received or they are higher than the internal cost of 
provision the contract is transferred to the internal team 
and capacity is adjusted accordingly. 

Considering 

impact on all 

wellbeing 

goals together 

and on other 

bodies 

The provision of home to school transport is an essential 

service underpinning learner’s education journey. The service 

is however resource intensive and reactive to the needs of the 

learners. The proposed policy provides a framework which 

ensures consistency in evaluating applications for transport, 

provides certainty for parents and learners and guidance on 

how discretionary transport will be awarded.  The alignment 

of the policy to WG’s transport hierarchy will benefit the 

wider community by increasing the viability of public service 

provision. 

The consultation feedback will be provided to Cabinet 
and used to inform the drafting of the policy. 

 
  

P
age 26



6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate 
Parenting and Safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?   
 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has  

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has  

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  All drivers, passenger assistants and operators 
are required to undertake safeguarding training. 
 
The policy sets out how school transport will be 
assessed and provided for looked after children, 
learners with additional learning needs and 
mainstream learners. 
 
All learners, parents and operators are required 
to adhere to our Rule Book to ensure the safety 
for all those involved. 

 

All safeguarding concerns are subject to a multi-
Agency referral process and when required a full 
safeguarding review. 

 

. Where safeguarding concerns cross the 
safeguarding threshold, drivers and or 
passenger assistants may be suspended 
from undertaking their duties/contracts. 
This can create a financial and emotional 
burden on the individuals concerned and the 
safeguarding investigation process can take 
a significant period to resolve. 

External operators will have the 
option to have a member of the 
Commissioning Team appointed as 
a welfare point of contact to keep 
them informed (as much as they are 
able) on the progress of the 
investigation. 
 
MCC colleagues will follow internal 
policy and procedures. 
 
The paramount concern remains the 
safe transportation of our learners. 

Corporate Parenting  The policy sets out the eligibility criteria for 
looked after children. The service works closely 
with Children’s Services to provision specific 
transport needs as required. 

  

 
7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

P
age 27



The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 
 
Learner Travel Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance 2014 
 
Welsh Government LTM Review March 2024 
 
Existing Transport Policy and Lessons Learnt 
 
Existing transport contracts and engagement with individual learners and their parents 
 
School transport appeals and requests for discretionary transport 
 
A review of other LA Transport policies  
 
Llwybr Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021 
 

Local Transport Strategy 

 

8. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 
. The form has highlighted the complexities of the provision of home to school transport including its substantial impact on resources, its impact on climate change and the 

need to continually evaluate the provision to respond to a changing social, economic and environmental back drop. The proposed consultation will enable us to consider 

the feedback against the legislative framework, resources constraints and the wants and wishes of service users. The survey results and feedback will be provided to 

Cabinet to support an informed decision-making process and any policy changes to be implemented in the 25-26 Home to School Transport Policy. 

 

It will also enable parents and learners the opportunity to plan for any changes from September 24. 

 

 

9. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if 
applicable. 

 

What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  

Report to be presented to Cabinet seeking approval to consult on the 

draft policy 

3rd May 2023 Head of Service  

Undertake consultation on the draft policy  May – June 2023 Commissioning Team 

P
age 28



People Scrutiny Committee August 23 Head of Service 

Review feedback, finalize draft and seek Member approval  September 23 Head of Service & 

Commissioning Manager 

Publish Transport Policy 24-25 1st October 22 Commissioning Manager 

 

10. VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally 

within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision-making process.  It is important to keep a record of this 

process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever 

possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage  Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

1 Cabinet approval to consult on proposed Transport 

Policy 23-24 
27th July 2022  

2. Cabinet Update  7th September 

2022 

 

3. Cabinet decision to consult on proposed 

Transport Policy 24-25 

May 2023 Updated to reflect proposed policy changes for 24-25 

4. Public Consultation 31st May – 29th 

June 2023 

Draft document amended to reflect feedback 

5. Cabinet decision to adopt Transport Policy 

24-25 

September 2023  

6. Public Consultation on 3 options for Home 

to School Transport Policy 25-26 

  

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Galw penderfyniad i mewn gan y Cabinet ar 11 Medi 2024 yng nghyswllt Poilisi Cludiant rhwng y Cartref a’r Ysgol 2025-26.
	Monmouthshire Call-in Process updated May 2022
	PSC H2S Transport Policy 25-26
	Transport Policy EQIA July 2024


